SAN MATEO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 1250 SAN CARLOS AVENUE, SAN CARLOS, CALIFORNIA

CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE (CAC) MEETING MINUTES

JULY 7, 2020

MEMBERS PRESENT: B. Arietta (Chair)*, A. Chen, K. Chin, J. Fox (Vice Chair)*, S. Green,

(Via R. Hedges, K. Kuklin, J. Londer, P. Ohtaki, O. O'Neill, D. Reed,

Teleconference) M. Rendon

MEMBERS ABSENT: D. Bautista, N. Hsu

STAFF PRESENT: J. Hurley, A. Linehan, P. Skinner, D. Hansel, A. Chan, J. Williams,

C. Mobley-Ritter, J. Sangha, R. McCauley, J. Brook

* Vice Chair John Fox chaired the meeting in place of Chair Barbara Arietta due to the technical considerations of conducting the meeting via teleconference.

1) CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Vice Chair John Fox called the meeting to order at 4:35 pm and requested that Rich Hedges lead the Pledge of Allegiance.

2) ROLL CALL

CAC Secretary Jean Brook called the roll. A quorum was present.

3) APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE TA CAC MEETING OF JUNE 2, 2020

Motion/Second: Arietta/Londer

Ayes: Arietta, Chen, Chin, Fox, Green, Hedges, Kuklin, Ohtaki, O'Neill, Londer, Reed,

Rendon

Absent: Bautista, Hsu

4) PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

None.

5) TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY BOARD MEETING AGENDA FOR JULY 9, 2020

a) TA Board Item 11 (a) State and Federal Legislative Update

Amy Linehan, Public Affairs Specialist, provided details on recent federal and state legislation, particularly on the economic impacts of COVID-19.

Rich Hedges said he had attended the MTC (Metropolitan Transportation Commission) Blue Ribbon Task Force meeting, noting that Caltrain is projected to exhaust its funding by October.

Peter Ohtaki asked if the TA needed to be more assertive in lobbying for state transportation funds. Ms. Linehan said that the TA has pursued and will continue pursuing grant program opportunities.

Vice Chair Fox said that pandemic impacts on Caltrain are more dire due to its reliance on farebox recovery, and Chair Barbara Arietta and Ms. Linehan concurred.

b) TA Board Item 11 (b) Water Emergency Transportation Authority South San Francisco Ferry Program Update

Jennifer Williams, TA Administrative Analyst, introduced Arthi Krubanandh, Transportation Planner, Water Emergency Transportation Authority (WETA), who provided the presentation.

Mr. Ohtaki asked if WETA could work in a public/private relationship with other South San Francisco employers. Kevin Connolly, Planning and Development Manager, WETA, noted that Genentech fully funds their employee ferry fares.

Dave Reed asked about the reasons for the reduction in Genentech's ferry usage. Mr. Connolly said that many of Genentech's employees had started working remotely before the formal shelter-in-place order and are likely to continue that practice through at least the rest of the year with an indeterminate date for returning to the workplace.

Mr. Hedges said he had made a proposal to the City of South San Francisco to move the Third Street light rail into Oyster Point. Chair Arietta asked if the light rail was the same SFMTA (San Francisco Municipal Transportation Authority) line that goes to the Fourth Street Caltrain station. Mr. Hedges said the rail was going all the way to just a few blocks short of the North Beach area and that it was supposed to be completed by early 2021.

Vice Chair Fox asked about the Redwood City ferry extension. Mr. Connolly said they are looking at different prospective service lines. Vice Chair Fox said there would need to be a last-mile connection in Redwood City to Caltrain. Joe Hurley, TA Director, said that the TA was doing a feasibility study and would provide the CAC with an update upon its completion.

c) TA Board Item 12 (a) Program and Allocate Measure A Funds to the City of South San Francisco to Study the Feasibility of a New Ferry Terminal

Peter Skinner, Director of Grants and Funds Management, provided the staff report and introduced Mike Futrell, City Manager, City of South San Francisco. Mr. Futrell said they would like to establish north-south WETA ferry service and water taxis. He outlined plans for ferry service and the feasibility and financing of last-mile connections.

Chair Arietta asked if there were any plans in place for evening service to and from San Francisco for the Chase Center or Oracle Park. Mr. Futrell responded that the hotel developer is on board with evening service. He said the smaller water taxis would have more flexibility to handle special events. Chair Arietta said she was concerned about the lack of parking at Chase Center.

Motion/Second: Hedges/Arietta

Ayes: Arietta, Chen, Chin, Fox, Green, Hedges, Kuklin, Ohtaki, O'Neill, Londer, Reed,

Rendon

Absent: Bautista, Hsu

d) TA Board Item 12 (b) US 101 Express Lanes Project Financing: Approval of Issuance of Subordinate Sales Tax Revenue Variable Rate Bonds (Limited Tax Bonds) and Associated Actions and Documents

Derek Hansel, Chief Financial Officer, provided the presentation.

Mr. Ohtaki asked about the principal financing of the loan. He asked about the sinking fund requirements on the subordinated bonds that the TA is issuing. Mr. Hansel said they would be putting bonds out, starting for ten years, but anticipated paying back the loan well before maturity. Mr. Ohtaki asked if this was an objective and was it subject to the revenue sharing. Mr. Hansel said they had two sets of outstanding loans: the bond loan, the capital loan, and the operating loans. He said the operating loan should be prepaid sooner than the bond loan. He said a function of the toll revenue would be how fast the TA repays the loan. Mr. Ohtaki noted that the principal does not get paid until after the JPA does a set-aside.

Mr. Hedges asked if there was a cap on the variable interest rate. Mr. Hansel said that they did not anticipate a cap. He said the cost of such a premium was too high to be feasible.

Steven Green asked what the \$100 million was intended to fund. Mr. Hansel said that the money was intended to fund the express lanes project construction and operations until it can be self-supporting from toll revenues.

Vice Chair Fox said that the JPA is agreeing to give up the toll revenues in the future, i.e., selling off the future earnings of the toll revenue stream. Mr. Hansel said that the TA on the other hand is selling bonds for the same purpose.

Dave Reed asked if the JPA would have another source of funding moving into the future. Mr. Hansel said that as CFO of the JPA, he looked forward to a future where the toll revenues prove themselves so as to secure additional financing if needed.

Chair Arietta asked for clarification of the language to use to make a motion to approve. Mr. Hurley asked what she believed to be missing. Chair Arietta gave her suggestions. April Chan, Chief Officer, Planning, Grants/Transportation Authority, said they could read the language from the staff report into the record.

Motion/Second: Arietta/Ohtaki

Ayes: Arietta, Chen, Chin, Fox, Green, Hedges, Kuklin, Ohtaki, O'Neill, Londer, Reed,

Rendon

Absent: Bautista, Hsu

e) TA Board Item 12 (c) Program and Allocate Funds for the Short-range Highway Plan

Mr. Skinner presented the staff report.

Mr. Green asked what has changed about highways in the County since 1988 at the beginning of Measure A funding. Mr. Hurley said the County has migrated from moving vehicles to moving people. He said there are more expenses and environmental issues.

Ms. Chan said they did not develop a highway plan under Measure A until 2004. Mr. Hurley added that they needed to honor the core principles of Measure W prior to making investment decisions. Mr. Green asked if the TA was doing a 50-50 split between Measures A and W. Mr. Hurley said these issues would be part of the plan. Ms. Chan said they would cover both measures.

Motion/Second: Hedges/Arietta

Ayes: Arietta, Chen, Chin, Fox, Green, Hedges, Kuklin, Ohtaki, O'Neill, Londer, Reed,

Rendon

Absent: Bautista, Hsu

f) TA Board Item 12 (d) Program and Allocate Additional Funds for the Construction Phase of the State Route 1 Safety and Operational Improvements Project, Poplar to Wavecrest

Mr. Hurley introduced Arul Edwin, Project Manager, TA Administration, who presented the staff report. Mr. Edwin introduced Ray Razavi, Transportation Engineer, City of Half Moon Bay, as part of the project team. Mr. Razavi described the location of the project, which is an important access point to downtown Half Moon Bay, senior center, and affordable housing.

Mr. Reed asked if he needed approval from the Coastal Commission. Mr. Razavi said the City has the authority to approve through their local coastal land use plan and if there were any objections, the project would go back to the Coastal Commission. He added that there were no objections in this case. Mr. Reed asked if an overpass was being proposed. Mr. Razavi said no, because the project includes enhanced pedestrian/bicycle crossings.

Mario Rendon expressed his support for the project.

Ken Chin said he agreed that the intersection needs safety improvements. He asked if the bids were received pre- or post-pandemic. Mr. Razavi said that the advertisement began in early May and that they received five bids.

Mr. Hedges said he was in favor of the project.

Vice Chair Fox said asked if there were a plan to synchronize the new stoplights. Mr. Razavi said that they were looking into it.

Motion/Second: Hedges/Reed

Ayes: Arietta, Chen, Chin, Fox, Green, Hedges, Kuklin, Ohtaki, O'Neill, Londer, Reed,

Rendon

Absent: Bautista, Hsu

g) TA Board Item 5 (b) Acceptance of Statement of Revenues and Expenditures for May 2020

Mr. Ohtaki asked if there was any impact of COVID-19 on sales tax for Measures A and W. Mr. Skinner said they expect a reduction in sales tax receipts, but they will not know how much until approximately September.

Motion/Second: Hedges/Londer

Ayes: Arietta, Chen, Chin, Fox, Green, Hedges, Kuklin, Ohtaki, O'Neill, Londer, Reed,

Rendon

Absent: Bautista, Hsu

h) TA Board Item 5 (a) Approval of Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting of June 4, 2020

There were no comments.

6) REPORT OF THE CHAIR

Chair Arietta said she was pleased that the appellant court had backed up the RM3 (Regional Measure 3).

7) REPORT FROM STAFF

Mr. Hurley described proposed projects under a competitive program under SB1. Mr. Skinner said it involved three years of programming.

8) MEMBER COMMENTS/REQUESTS

Vice Chair Fox said he was cautious about considering using transit during the pandemic. He noted it was a very challenging environment for transit.

Chair Arietta said that she had heard on the news that Caltrain is to be commended for cleanliness and observance of social distancing on trains. Mr. Hedges said that he agreed that Caltrain was the safest mode of transit, especially in comparison to BART. He commented that the City of New York has 50 percent of their riders back since most of them are car-free.

Vice Chair Fox thanked staff, members, and the visiting consultants for their participation.

Chair Arietta announced that the JPB Board was meeting Thursday morning to discuss Caltrain funding.

9) DATE, TIME, AND PLACE OF NEXT REGULAR MEETING

Vice Chair Fox announced that the next meeting would be held on Tuesday, August 4, 2020 at 4:30 pm, with teleconference or location details to be provided prior to the meeting.

10) ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 6:53 pm.